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I. SUMMARY 
 

1. Rescissions 
 
There were 5 policies/certificates rescinded during the scope period.  A total of 5 
were reviewed.  No violations were found. 

2. Declinations 
 

 There were 1,622 applications declined during the scope period.  A total of 114 
were reviewed.  In two (2) instances the Company failed to provide a specific 
reason for declining coverage in writing.   

 
3. Cancellations 
 

There were 1,914 policies/certificates cancelled during the scope period.  A total 
of 107 cancellations were reviewed.  No violations were found. 

 
4. Underwriting 
 

There were 9,381 policies/certificates issued during the scope period.  A total of 
116 were reviewed.  In addition, the examination included a review of policies 
renewed under the transitional policy.  The Company did not have any policies 
renewed under the transitional policy.  No violations were found. 

 
5. Paid Claims 
 

There were 17,654 claims paid during the scope period.  A total of 109 were 
reviewed.  No violations were found. 

 
6. Denied Claims 
 

There were 3,641 claims denied during the scope period.  A total of 108 were 
reviewed.  In one instance the Company failed to pay for covered Preventive 
Health Service. 

 
7. Appeals and Grievances 
 

There were 45 appeals/grievances during the scope period.  A total of 45 appeals 
were reviewed.  No violations were found. 
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II. BACKGROUND: 
 

Golden Rule Insurance Company is a foreign Life, Health and Accident issuer licensed to 
conduct business in 40 states and the District of Columbia.  The Company became 
licensed in the State of Illinois on June 17, 1959.  The Company is part of the United 
Health Group. The Company provides individual health and dental insurance plans with 
optional benefit riders including vision and term life insurance coverage in the State of 
Illinois. 

 
The Illinois Department of Insurance (DOI) conducted a target market conduct 
examination of Golden Rule Insurance Company pursuant to Sections 132, 401, 401.5, 
402, 403 and 425 of the Illinois Insurance Code (215 ILCS 5/132, 5/401, 5/401.5, 5/402, 
5/403, and 5/425). The examination was performed by Examination Resources, LLC.  
The scope period of the examination was July 1, 2013 through March 27, 2014 for Non 
Qualified Health Plans (Non-QHP).  The onsite examination began March 31, 2014 and 
ended May 9, 2014. 

 
The purpose of the examination was to review the Company’s compliance with the 
provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) and Illinois laws and 
regulations as it relates to rescissions, declinations, cancellations, underwriting, claims, 
appeals and grievances for business written on QHP and Non-QHP plans in the State of 
Illinois. 

 
The Company issued 9,381 individual and group Non-QHP policies during the scope 
period.   

 
The Company did not write any QHP plans. 

 
 
III. METHODOLOGY: 
 

The market conduct examination places emphasis on an insurer's systems and procedures 
used in dealing with insureds and claimants.  The scope of this market conduct 
examination was limited to the following general areas. 
 
Compliance with the provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) 
and Illinois laws and regulations for business written on QHP and Non-QHP plans in the 
State of Illinois involving: 

 
1. Rescissions 
2. Declinations 
3. Cancellations 
4. Underwriting 
5. Paid Claims 
6. Denied Claims 
7. Appeals and Grievances 
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The review of these categories is accomplished through examination of individual 
underwriting and claim files, written interrogatories and interviews with company 
personnel.  Each of these categories is examined for compliance with Department of 
Insurance rules and regulations and applicable state laws. 
 
Sample sizes were determined using the Acceptance Samples Table of the NAIC Market 
Regulation Handbook or by the Audit Command Language (ACL) software.  The 
handbook allows several methods for determining sample sizes.  In utilizing ACL to 
determine the sample sizes, the parameters consisted of a Confidence Level of 95%, an 
Upper Error Limit of 5% and an Expected Error Rate of 2% in accordance with the 
handbook. 
 
Rescissions 
 
Rescission is the terminating of any policy retroactively back to the date of its inception.  
The purpose of the review was to determine compliance with PHS Act § 2712, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 300gg-12 and 45 C.F.R. § 147.128, which require the following: 
 

1.  Prohibits an issuer from cancelling or discontinuing coverage retroactively. 

2.  Exception is an act or omission that constitutes either fraud or intentional 
misrepresentation of a material fact by the enrollee. 

3.  An inadvertent misstatement of fact does not constitute fraud. 

4.  Prospective terminations and terminations due to failure to pay premiums or 
contributions that may be applied retroactively are not rescissions. 

5. Issuer is required to provide thirty (30) days' advance written notice prior to 
rescinding coverage. 

6.  An enrollee may appeal the decision under 45 CFR §147.136. 
 

Declinations 
 
Applications that were declined were reviewed to verify compliance with PHS Act § 
2705, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-4 and 45 C.F.R. § 146.121 (group plans) and 45 C.F.R. 
§147.110 (individual plans), which require the following: 
 
Issuers may not establish any rule for eligibility (including continued eligibility) of any 
enrollee to enroll for benefits under the terms of the plan or charged more for coverage 
because of any of the following health factors: 
 

 

 



4 
 

• Health status; 

• Medical condition, including both physical and mental illnesses (as defined in 45 C.F.R. 
§ 144.103); 

• Claims experience; 

• Receipt of health care; 

• Medical history; 

• Genetic information (as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 146.122(a)); 

• Evidence of insurability; or 

• Disability 
 
Cancellations 
 
Cancellations were reviewed to verify compliance with the PHS Act § 2714; 42 U.S.C. § 
300gg-14; 45 C.F.R. § 147.120, 45 CFR 148.122 and 45 CFR 146.152 (HIPAA 
guaranteed renewability requirements), 215 ILCS 97/30, 215 ILCS 97/50 (Illinois 
guaranteed renewability requirements), and 215 ILCS 5/356z.12, to ensure cancellations 
reasons were permissible. 
  
Underwriting 
 

Policies issued were reviewed to verify compliance with the following provisions: 
 
1. Guaranteed Availability - PHS Act § 2702; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-1; 45 C.F.R. § 

146.150 (grandfathered small group); and 45 C.F.R. § 147.104 (individual and 
group) and 45 CFR 148.122 (grandfathered individual - HIPAA). 

2. Pre-Existing Conditions - PHS Act § 2704, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-3 and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.108. 

3. Discrimination based on health status - PHS Act § 2705, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-4 and 
45 C.F.R. § 146.121 (HIPAA – group and 45 CFR 147.110 (individual) 

4. Lifetime and Annual Limits - PHS Act § 2711; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-11; and 45 
C.F.R. § 147.126. 

5. Preventive Health Care - PHS Act § 2713; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-13; and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.130. 

6. Dependent Coverage to Age 26 - PHS Act § 2714; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-14; 45 
C.F.R. § 147.120. 

7. Patient Protections - PHS Act § 2719A, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-19a and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.138(a)(1), (2), (3) and (4). 

8. Wellness Programs - 45 C.F.R. § 146.121. 
9. SBC Notices – PHS Act § 2715 and 45 CFR 147.200 
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10. Appeal Notices – PHS Act § 2719, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-19 and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.136. 

 
In addition, compliance with transitional policy for non-grandfathered coverage in the 
small group and individual health insurance market as announced on November 14, 2013, 
by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) was also reviewed. As an 
option, the transitional policy health insurance issuers may choose to continue certain 
coverage that would otherwise be cancelled, and affected individuals and small 
businesses may choose to re-enroll in such coverage. CMS further stated that, under the 
transitional policy, non-grandfathered health insurance coverage in the individual or 
small group market that is renewed for a policy year starting between January 1, 2014 
and October 1, 2014 will not be considered to be out of compliance with certain market 
reforms if certain specific conditions are met.  
 
Paid Claims 

Paid claims were reviewed to verify compliance with the following provisions: 
 

1. Pre-Existing Conditions - PHS Act § 2704, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-3 and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.108. 

2. Nondiscrimination of Health Care Providers - PHS Act § 2706 and 42 U.S.C. § 
300gg-5 

3. Essential Health Benefits - PHS Act §2707 and 45 CFR §156.115(a)  
4. Clinical Trials - PHS Act § 2709 and 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-8  
5. Lifetime and Annual Limits - PHS Act § 2711; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-11; and 45 

C.F.R. § 147.126.  
6. Preventive Health Services - PHS Act § 2713; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-13; and 45 

C.F.R. § 147.130 (Including cost sharing prohibition) 
7. Emergency Services - PHS Act § 2719A; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-19a and 45 C.F.R. § 

147.138(b) 

Denied Claims 

Paid claims were reviewed to verify compliance with the following provisions: 
 

1. Pre-Existing Conditions - PHS Act § 2704, 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-3 and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.108. 

2. Nondiscrimination of Health Care Providers - PHS Act § 2706 and 42 U.S.C. § 
300gg-5 

3. Essential Health Benefits - PHS Act §2707 and 45 CFR §156.115(a)  
4. Clinical Trials - PHS Act § 2709 and 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-8  
5. Lifetime and Annual Limits - PHS Act § 2711; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-11; and 45 

C.F.R. § 147.126.  
6. Preventive Health Services - PHS Act § 2713; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-13; and 45 

C.F.R. § 147.130 (Including cost sharing prohibition) 
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7. Emergency Services - PHS Act § 2719A; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-19a and 45 C.F.R. § 
147.138(b) 

Appeals and Grievances 

The Company’s appeals program was reviewed to determine whether the appeals and 
grievance procedures given to enrollees include all the required information and to 
determine if the Company followed established procedures in compliance with PHS Act 
§ 2719; 42 U.S.C. § 300gg-19; and 45 C.F.R. § 147.136. 

 

 
IV. SELECTION OF SAMPLE: 
               #        % 
Survey      Population Reviewed Reviewed 
 
 
Rescissions 5 5 100% 
Declinations 1,622 114 .07% 
Cancellations 1,914 107 .06% 
Underwriting 9,381 116 .01% 
Paid Claims 17,654 109 .006% 
Denied Claims 3,641 108 .03% 
Appeals and Grievances 45 45 100% 
 
 
 
V. FINDINGS: 
 

A. Rescissions: 
 
There were 5 policies/certificates rescinded during the scope period.  A total of 5 
were reviewed.  No violations were found. 

B. Declinations: 
 
 There were 1,622 applications declined during the scope period.  A total of 114 

were reviewed. 
 

In two (2) instances, the Company failed to provide a specific reason for declining 
coverage in writing.  This is a violation of section 1011 (A)(1) of the Illinois 
Insurance Code (215 ILCS 5/1011 (A)(1).  Both applicants were sent declination 
letters; however, the letters did not provide a reason for the adverse underwriting 
decision. Illinois Insurance Code requires the company to provide a specific 
reason or reasons for the adverse underwriting decision in writing or advise such 
person that upon written request he or she may receive the specific reason or 
reasons in writing.  
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C. Cancellations 
 
There were 1,914 policies/certificates cancelled during the scope period.  A total 
of 107 cancellations were reviewed.  No violations were found. 
 

D. Underwriting: 
 

There were 9,381 policies/certificates issued during the scope period.  A total of 
116 were reviewed.  In addition, the examination included a review of policies 
renewed under the transitional policy.  The Company did not have any policies 
renewed under the transitional policy.  No violations were found. 

E. Paid Claims: 
 

There were 17,654 claims paid during the scope period.  A total of 109 were 
reviewed.  No violations were found. 

F. Denied Claims: 
 

There were 3,641 claims denied during the scope period.  A total of 108 were 
reviewed. 

In one (1) instance the Company failed to pay for covered Preventive Health 
Service.  This is a violation of Section 2713(a)(4) Coverage of Preventive Health 
Services.  The Company denied paying for labs associated with a routine 
gynecological examination.     

G. Appeals and Grievances: 
 

 There were 45 appeals/grievances during the scope period.  A total of 45 appeals 
were reviewed.  No violations were found. 
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